

H Y D R O P H O B I A

DIPLOMANIA Supplement -- NFFB Games Bureau & IFW Diplomacy Divisions -- Issue #11
Editor and Publisher: Don Miller -- -- -- -- -- 16 December 1969
Postal Diplomacy Subzines and Variant Games therein: Curiouser & Curiouser....
DIPSOMANIA #32 HYSTERIA #8 BARAD-DUR #52
DBB(1966Dg)(W11)(pg 2) *FHD(1966Rr)(Su/F12)(pp 2,3) DFF(1966No)(SL2)(pp 6,7)
SCHIZOPHRENIA #9 FIE(1966Ss)(A/W00)(pp 3,4) CHAOS #8
DDD(1966JL)(Su/F11)(pp 4,5) GAA(1967Er)(W10)(pg 4) SBB(1967Xav)(Su/F08)(pg 8)
SUPERCALIFRAG'IOUS #32 FANTASIA #33 ASTRA #10
SAA(1966Op)(W10/SL1)(pg 7) FMH(1969Ice)(T02)(pg 5) SCC(1967Yav)(A/W07)(pg 1)
SEE(1967AAay)(Su/F06)(pp 7,8) FOH(1969Pce)(C01)(pp 5,6)/*Non W1612, D.Miller, IROQUOIS.

The Players -- No CoA's, but we expect lots of people will be home for holidays
(dates given where known): Larry St.Cyr, 30 Frederick St., N. Adams, Mass., 01247
(17 Dec. thru 29 Jan.); Dick Reiter (possibly at 1617 Maple Ave., Turtle Creek,
Pa., 15145; and possibly in D.C. area); (Oops! There is 1 CoA: Brenton Ver Ploeg,
%General Delivery, Vail, Colo., 81657); Charles Welsh, 6917 Cherry Lane, Annandale,
Va., 22003 (17 Dec.-uhhh...can't find note...5 Jan??); Lincoln Clark (54 Westford
St., Chelmsford, Mass., 01824); Brian Libby, 16 William St., Portland, Maine,
04103 (19 Dec.-21 Jan.); Lewis Pulsipher (RR#3, Box 189, Battle Creek, Mich., 49017.

The Gamesmaster -- For all games, Don Miller, 12315 Judson Rd., Wheaton, Md., 20906
(ph. 301-933-5417; call only on Mon. or Thurs. between 9 and 10 p.m., EST).

The House-Rules -- As Published in DIPLOMANIA #26. These are mandatory.

Replacement Players--- Moves needed nextish from: Naus (DFF: IBERIA; FMH: GONDOR);
Boskey (SCC: AITR). Revised R.P. list in HPBA #12. More R.P.'s needed in all games

New Games -- In HYDROPHOBIA, Scotice Scripti, the game of ancient Ireland, Scotland,
Britain and Wales. Last call for players (4 openings). In DILOPHOBIA, 2 openings
in Regular game QDC. Fees \$5 (less \$1 if already playing in game in 'zine, less
another \$1 if 1970 G.B. Regular member, less another 50¢ if 1970 IFW member), fully
payable at time of application. Also AUX ARMES! Hyperec positions at \$1 each.

Miscellaneous -- Tri-weekly publication will resume in January, with issue #12.
Thanks for your patience. ##### DIPLOMANIA 27/28 and AUX ARMES! #7 out end of Dec.
Openings (until Jan. 20) in QCC Diplobourse; also openings in QDC Bourse.
Rules have been revised considerably for each Bourse, to test new ideas. See THE
EXCHANGE #4 or DILOPHOBIA #57 for more info. -- DLM

A S T R A

Issue Number 10 -- Postal Diplomacy Game SCC -- -- -- -- War in Space and Time....

SCC (The Foundation Game) -- LEBLING MIS OVERTHROWN! NEW GLORY PROMISED FOR
FIRST EMPIRE!

The Players -- Brenton Ver Ploeg is now playing FIRST EMPIRE in place of Dave
Lebling.

Error in HPBA #10 -- Dislodged FIRST FOUNDATION F48 could not retreat to 54,
as that is where the dislodging attack originated. FFOU F48 was therefore (A), and,
with no home s.ctrs. in which to build, can not be replaced WINTER, 8007.

WINTER, 8007 builds/removals -- EMPIRE COLONIES (St.Cyr): (E) 3F Helicon(19);
(E) F Glyptal(22); UNION OF WORLDS (Brooks): (B) F Santanni(29); (B) F Kalgen(31);
(B) F Siwenna(32); (B) F Horlegger(34); ASSOC. INDEPENDENT TRADERS (Gemignani):
NMR; stands pat.

Positions at end of W'08 -- FEMP (Ver Ploeg): F7; 2F 11; 3F 13; 4F 15 (10);
ECOL: F's 3, 14, 16, 17; 3C's 19, 22; 4C 21 (14); MULE: F's 25, 24, 8, 32, 34, 53;
2F's 28, 23; 5F's 29, 31 (20 -- 2 short next yr.); AITR: F's 59, 48, 45, 42, 39,
38, 33; 2F's 58, 55, 52; 3F 27; 5F 30 (21 -- 3 short); FFOU (Schelz): F7 (1 - 1 short).

Hyperspace Links in effect end of W'07 -- 58-3, 54-3, 53-3, 29-3.

Deadline for SPRING, 8008 moves -- Noon, Tues., Jan. 27.

D I P S O M A N I A

Issue Number 32 ----- Postal Diplomacy Game DBB ----- THIS is war???

DBB (Economic Diplomacy I) -- COUP IN ITALY! TURKISH SHIPYARDS, ARMORIES WORK OVERTIME TO BUILD UP TURKISH ARMED FORCES!

The Players -- Jim Boskey is now playing ITALY in place of Dan Brannan.

WINTER, 1911 builds/removals -- FRA (Linden): Send 107 francs to Italy (107);

TUR (F.Clark): (B) F Con (19); (B) A Ank (19); (B) F Smy (19).

Positions at end of W'll -- ENG (St.Cyr): A Lvp; F's Spa(NG), Lon (3); FRA: A's Gas, Mar, Par (3); ITA (Boskey): A's Tyo, Ven, Pru; F's Adr, Tun, WMe, Lyo, NAT (8); RUS (Kuch): A's Lvn, Ber, Mun, Bur, Pic; F's Sev, Nwg, NtS, Edi, EnC, Bre, Por; A's Pie, Sil (14); TUR: A's Ank, Bul, Bud, Vie, Mos; F's Smy, Con, Ion, Nap, Rom, Tri (11 -- 2 short next year).

Financial Situation at end of W'll --

Country	ENG	FRA	ITA	RUS	TUR
O.H. at start of W'll	£242 pd	£347 fr	£760 li	£347 ro	£465 pi
Construction Costs	-	-	-	-	-57
Gifts	-	-107	£107	-	-
O.H. at end of W'll	£242 pd	£240 fr	£867 li	£347 ro	£408 pi

Deadline for SPRING, 1912 moves -- Noon, Tues., Jan. 27.

H Y S T E R I A

Issue Number 8 ----- Postal Diplomacy Games FHD, FIE, GAA ----- Hoot-toot!!!

FHD (Indianomacy II, #1) -- IROQUOIS VICTORIOUS!

SUMMER, 1612 retreat -- APACHE (Gemignani): W Chiricahua(98) (R) Jicarilla(97).

FALL, 1612 moves -- (Only province nos. used to save space) --

APACHE (Gemignani): W110-113; W112 (S) W110-113; W114-115 (A); W97-96 (A).

IROQUOIS (Miller) -- W117-113; W116-115; W66 (S) W116-115; W67-114; W59-69; W15-6; W3-2; W21-25; W18-22; W52-23; W50 (H); W54-52; W72 (S) W50; W76 (S) W74-109; W74-109; W109-110; W108 (S) W109-110; W75 (S) W67-114; W120-67.

MUSKHOGEAN (St.Cyr) -- W113 (S) W115-114 (W 113 (A)); W115-114 (A).

SHOSHONI (Carey) -- W98-97; W99 (S) W98-97; W101-98; W96 (H); W87 (H); W29-22; W25 (S) W29-22; W49-24; W48-49; W80 (S) W48-49; W85 (S) W80; W47-48; W46-86; W81 (S) W82; W82 (S) W81; W83 (S) W81.

Supply Centers held at end of FALL, 1612 (no AUT retreats) --

APA -- ~~88, 82, 108, 110, 114~~, 113 (remove one unit; only 2 on board). (1)

IRO -- 109, 74, 64, 10, 11, 12, 14, 61, 15, 69, 70, 71, 56, 50, 52, 54, 18, 21, 3, 108, 110, 114, 115, 66 (may build 4 units; only 4 home s.ctrs.). (24)

MUS -- ~~113, 115, 66~~ (stands pat; no units on board). (0)

SHO -- 96, 97, 87, 83, 49, 26, 27, 28, 36, 29, 44, 45, 47, 38, 88, 80, 101, 99, 82 (may build 3 units; was one short last year). (19)

Propaganda --

Broken Land -- Great Chief Haienthwatha today told a cheering Council of Fifty that the Iroquois War Parties sent to give aid to the suffering Muskhogean people had been ordered to purge the tribe of all braves who are now or were in war paint at the time of the Great Sacrelige. "Only in this manner can the violation of the Sacred Territory be avenged, so that the Wrath of the Gods may be lifted from the Muskhogean nation, and the Muskhogean people may once again prosper -- under the benevolent rule of their Iroquois brothers." ##### The Great Chief also spoke of the Mad Squaw who masquerades as leader of the once-proud Apache nation, informing the Council that a massive force of Iroquois warriors was attacking the remaining Apache War Parties on all fronts, and promising the extermination of the last Apache brave by the end of 1613, "We shall have the forked-tongue of the Squaw on a platter to present at the next AUTUMN meeting of the Council." ##### Finally, Chief

FIE (Continued) --

several times and then was recognized as a precedent and formalized in a rule-change somewhere along the line in the long past history of this game. Can anyone remember which issue of which 'zine carried the rule-change? Our memory grows dim....

Deadline for SPRING, 1501 moves -- Noon, Tues., Jan. 27.

GAA (Indianomacy II, #2) -- IROQUOIS, SHOSHONI ALL EVEN AS RACE FOR SUPREMACY OF NORTH AMERICA NEARS CLIMAX!

WINTER, 1610 builds/removals -- IROQUOIS (Brooks): (B) W Seneca(14); (B) W Onondaga(12); MUSKHOGEAN (Boskey): (E) W Catawba(65); (E) W Piankashaw(68); SHOSHONI (Miller): (B) W Wind River Shoshoni(47); (B) W Lemni Shoshoni(44).

Positions at end of W'10: IROQ: W's 12, 14, 59, 62, 66, 67, 115, 114, 69, 58, 71, 74, 109, 78, 79, 50, 24, 23, 18, 3, 20 (21); MUSK: W's 75, 110 (2); SHOS: W's 99, 97, 82, 108, 106, 87, 81, 84, 85, 80, 48, 49, 47, 44, 31, 30, 29, 22, 25, 2, 19 (21).

Propaganda --

Wind River -- The Iroquois Chief-Who-Fights-Like-a-Squaw has been twice offered a face-saving draw, but has twice refused it. Now let the Great Wind of the Shoshoni blow down the Iroquois straw-men, sending them tumbling across the Great Plain, back into the forests from whence they came. Yeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee!!!!!!

Deadline for SPRING, 1611 moves -- Noon, Tues., Jan. 27.

SCHIZOPHRENIA

Issue Number 9 ----- Postal Diplomacy Game DDD ----- Dipsy-Doodles!

DDD (Twin-Earths Diplomacy) -- RUSSIA GAINS, TURKEY SLIPS BACKWARDS IN HEAVY SEESAW FIGHTING! ENGLAND BEGINS TO GROW AGAIN!

The Players -- Larry St.Cyr is now playing TURKEY in place of Ron Bounds.

SUMMER, 1911 retreats -- GER (Linden): A MunII (R) RuhII; TUR (St.Cyr): A

WarI (R) PruI; A MosII (R) UkrII; A PruII (R) SilII.

FALL, 1911 moves --

ENG (Schelz) -- F TrIII-LvpII; F MidI (S) F MidII; F MidII (S) F MidI; F EnCI (S) F Bell; F Bell (S) F EnCI; F NtSII-HolII; A BellII-HolII; F HellI-NtSI; A KieII-RuhII; A MunII-BurII; A MunI-BurI; F Ball-BerI; F BerII (S) F Ball-BerI; A SilII (S) RUS A WarI; F PruII (S) RUS A LvnII.

FRA (Gemignani) -- A BurII-BreII (impossible); A GasI-BreI; A BreI-BellI (impossible).

GER (Linden) -- A RuhII-HolII; A BurI-ParI; Kaiser BerI prepares to fall on his sword.

ITA (Reiter) -- A TyoII (S) A VenII-TrIII; A TyoI (S) A VenI-TrII; A VenI-TrII; A VenII-TrIII; A SpaI-SpaII; F IonI-AlbI; F AdrI (S) F IonI-AlbI; F TunI-IonI; F MarI (S) F MarII; F MarII (S) F MarI; F IonII (S) F TunI-IonI; F AdrII (S) A VenII-TrIII; F TynII (S) F (incomplete order); F PieII-LyoII; F PorI-Spa(SC)I.

RUS (Boskey) -- F SweI (H); A StPI-MosI; A MosII (S) A StPI-MosI; A WarI (S) A WarII; A WarII (S) A WarI (A WarII (A)); A LvnII (S) A MosII; A LvnI (S) A StPI-MosI.

TUR (St.Cyr) -- A VieI (S) A TriI; A ConI-SmyI; F AegI (S) E GreI-IonI; F GreI-IonI; A SerI-GreI; A TriI (S) A TriII; A RumI-UkrI; A GalI (S) A PruI-WarI; A PruI-WarI; A MosI (S) A SevII-MosII; A SevI (S) A MosI; F BlaI (S) A SevI; A SevII-MosII; A UkrII (S) A SevII-MosII; F BlaII (S) F ConII; F ConII (S) F AegII; F AegII (H); F GreII (S) F AegII; A BulII-SerII; A RumII (S) A BulII-SerII; A TriII (H) (D (BudII, AlbII, o.b.)); A VieII (S) A TriII; A GalII (S) A SilII-WarII; A SilII-WarII; F AlbI (S) F GreI-IonI (F AlbI D (AlbII, o.b.)).

Propaganda --

England -- France: This is final. If your senseless, and may I add, futile attacks on Italian possessions do not cease immediately, dire consequences shall befall thee.

Paris -- London I & II -- Your sad story touches all Frenchmen. We want to know for how much. It is an unfortunate fact that you and crocodiles have this in common: you both weep when you eat. ##### You are headed in the wrong direction to

DDD (Continued) --

save Paris. You have spent too much time being a bully with brave Germany. Where are your pals you were so contented with when I needed you? As for assuming battle stations, aren't you going to do that anyway? If you want to wield the knife, do so right in front of Russia, Italy and Turkey, so they can see the "truth" of your words and your many "kindnesses". So they can beat the tar out of you for safety's sake.

Paris -- Rome: I have trusted you. Don't be an England and stab the hand of friendship.

Supply Centers held at end of AUT'11 (retreats do not affect count) --

ENG -- BelI, HolI, Kiel, Muni, DenI, EdiI, LvpI, LonI, BelII, HolII, BerII, KielII, DenII, EdiII, LonII, BerI, MunII, LvpII (may build three units). (18)
 FRA -- BreI, ~~VatI~~, BreII, ParII (stands pat; only 3 units on board). (3)
 GER -- ~~BerI~~, ~~MunI~~, ParI (remove one unit). (1)
 ITA -- NapI, RomI, VenI, TunI, MarI, PorI, SpaI, NapII, RomII, VenII, TunII, MarII, PorII, SpaII, ~~LobII~~, TriII (stands pat). (15)
 RUS -- StPI, NwyI, SweI, StPII, ~~VatII~~, NwyII, SweII, WarI, MosII (may build one unit; 1 was dest. F'11, but has only 1 open home s.ctr.). (8)
 TUR -- AnkI, ConI, SmyI, Bull, GreI, RumI, SerI, BudI, TriI, VieI, MosI, SevI, ~~WarI~~, AnkII, ConII, SmyII, BullII, GreII, RumII, SerII, BudII, ~~VatII~~, VieII, ~~MosII~~, SevII, WarII (must remove two units). (23)

Deadline for AUTUMN'11 retreats (TUR: A TriII, F AlbI) and W'll builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., Jan. 27.

FANTASIA

Issue Number 33 ----- Postal Diplomacy Games FMH, FOH ----- This is WAR???

FMH (Mordor-Versus-the-World IV, #1) -- QUEEN OF GONDOR REPORTED OVERTHROWN!
 NAZGUL IN TROUBLE!

The Players -- Hal Naus, pls. send QUELLE, 3002 moves for GONDOR, in case Gemignani misses again.

TUILLE, 3002 moves --

ARNOR (Linden) -- SA Glorfindel Iml-Mis; SA Rorimac ThS-GrH; DA Elrond Ang-Crk; SA Halbarad Ere (S) Glorfindel Iml-Mis; SA Ferumbas Bra (S) Halbarad Ere; DU Bombadil Art (H).

GONDOR (Gemignani?) -- SA Leb (U); SA Ano (U); DA Aragorn MiT (U); SA DoA (U); DU Tol (U).

MORDOR (Reiter) -- TA Sauron Hen-Ith; NA Nazgul Crk Flies to NoR (D (Gun, NoM, Ett, o.b.)); SA Witch King CaD-Ang; SA Balrog Tha-Ere; SA Saruman Isg (H); SA Uruk Hai Wil-WeR; SA Haradrim Umb w/BB to SoS; SA Voice of Saruman Rau-Wol; SA Corsairs of Umbar Hrd-Hrw; SA Wargs Mor (S) Balrog Tha-Ere; SA Easterlings Udu-Dag; SA Trolls MiM-Hen; DU Gorlag NoN-Sha; DU Shagrat Bar (H).

RHOVANION (Welsh) -- SA Thorin Esg-NoR; SA Dain DoG-Wil; SA Thrainduil NWi (S) Dain DoG-Wil; DA Gandalf Gla (S) ARN Glorfindel Iml-Mis; DU Radagast Mir (U).

ROHAN (St.Cyr) -- DA Fangorn Cel-Lor; SA Riders of the Mark Edo (S) Eowyn WEW; SA Eomer Fan (S) DU Eowyn WEW; DU Eowyn-WEW (S) Eomer Fan.

NEUTRAL -- DA Galadriel Lor (H).

Propaganda --

Arnor -- To Sauron FOH: We were smart enough to keep your counterpart from getting four builds. He took Tharbad because we took Eregion. And see how long he keeps the four builds he got!

Deadline for LAIRE, 3002 retreat (MOR: NA Crk) and QUELLE, 3002 moves -- Noon, Tues., Jan. 27 (remember, no flying retreat for NA).

FOH (Mordor-Versus-the-World IV, #2) -- VOLUNTEERS STREAM INTO RECRUITING CENTERS ALL OVER MIDDLE-EARTH AS FIRST YEAR OF CRUSADE AGAINST THE DARK LORD COMES TO A CLOSE!

FOH (Continued) --

COIRE, 3001 builds -- ARNOR (L.Clark): (B) SA Círdan ThS; (B) SA Bree-landers Iml; GONDOR: (B) SA 1st Anti-Orc Leb; MORDOR (Libby): (B) SA 3rd Orc Army Udu; (B) SA 4th Orc Army Bar; (B) SA Black Numenorian Army MiM; (B) SA 2nd Southron Army Hrd; (B) SA 2nd Goblin Army DoG; RHOVANION (Pulsipher): (B) SA Dwarves of Erebor Esg; ROHAN (Dean): (B) SA Eomer WEm; (B) SA Eowyn Fan.

Positions at end of C'01 -- ARN: DA Elrond Ang; SA's Rhündunedain Bra, Bree-landers Iml, Hyarmendunedain GrH, Círdan ThS; DU Halflings Amo (1 DA, 4 SA's, 1 DU); GON: DA Aragorn MiT; SA's Boromir Ano, Prince Imrahil DoA, 1st Anti-Orc Leb; DU Forlong SoG (1 DA, 3 SA's, 1 DU); MOR: TA Witch King Hen; NA Nazgul Kha; SA's 1st Orc Army Por, 1st Goblin Army NWi, 1st Barrow-Wight Army CaD, 1st Cave Troll Army Ere, 2nd Orc Army Isn, 1st Southron Army Umb, 3rd Orc Army Udu, 4th Orc Army Bar, Black Numenorian Army MiM, 2nd Southron Army Hrd, 2nd Goblin Army DoG; DU's Shagrat NoN, Gorbag NuW (1 TA, 1 NA, 11 SA's, 2 DU's); RHO: DA Gandalf Gla; SA's Gimli Crk, Legolas WeR, Dwarves of Erebor Esg; DU Elves of Mirkwood Mir (1 DA, 3 SA's, 1 DU); ROH: DA Fangorn Tha; SA's Knights of Riddermark Rau, Theoden Cal, Eomer WEm, Eowyn Fan; DU Dúnhere Esf (1 DA, 4 SA's, 1 DU).

Propaganda --

Arnor -- Quadruple Alliance? Knowing the bad things that come of quadruple alliances (mainly, they don't work!), one would hardly want to call a bug-stomping society a QUADRUPLE ALLIANCE, especially when one of the supposed members of the supposed alliance is on your team. End of lecture. P.S. One should start small with any collection. Why not start with flip-top rings, or maybe cigar bands?

SORHED/Lord of Fordor/Boss of the Nozdrul/Proprietor of Bardahl (cheapest high-rise apartments in town!)

Edoras -- It was announced today that Theoden's kinsman, Eowyn, missing and presumed dead for many months, has finally been found under the protection of the Ents of Fangorn. Though suffering from exposure to Arnorish influence when first found, she has recovered, and has vowed to help the Ents in their quest to destroy the Ogre of the North.

Rohan -- Arnor: I have always been a believer in the maxim: "Actions speak louder than words." Don't go deaf on me, hear?

Excerpt from the MISTY MOUNTAINEER -- It would seem that only children or fools would be smiling in Arnor in times such as these. Which is Elrond?

A couple more queries mit replies --

1. SA Fonebone is in Fangorn; SA Bestertester is in W.Emnet; SA Karbunkle is in Edoras; SA Laura Lipschitz is in Isen; these are on the same side. DA Curls is in Isengard (fortress destroyed); SA Clumsy Carp is in Dunland; these two are together. The following orders are given:

SA Fonebone (S) SA Karbunkle-Isg; SA Bestertester (S) SA Karbunkle-Isg; SA Karbunkle-Isg; SA Laura Lipschitz (S) SA Karbunkle-Isg.
DA Curls-Fan; SA Clumsy Carp (S) DA Curls-Fan.

What happens? ((Karbunkle takes Isengard, Curls takes Fangorn, dislodging Fonebone who must retreat. Fonebone's support is cut, remaining supports are good.))

2. SA Thor is at Dagorlad; SA #2 is at South Rhun. Orders: SA Thor-Ash Mtns; SA #2-Dag. Again, what happens? ((SA Thor takes Ash Mtns, SA #2 takes Dagorlad.))

Deadline for TUILLE, 3002 moves -- Noon, Tues., Jan. 27.

B A R A D - D U R

Issue Number 52 ---- Postal Diplomacy Game DFF - - - - - Ennead!!

DFF (Miller Nine-Man Diplomacy) -- TURKISH FLEETS SWARM INTO IBERIA! GREECE FALLS TO AUSTRIA-HUNGARY!

The Players -- Hal Naus, pls. send SUM retreats and FALL moves for IBERIA, in case Ron Bounds misses his moves again.

SPRING, 1912 moves --

A-H (Mebane) -- A Sal-Gre; A Rum-Ode; A Ode-Cau; A Pol-Pru; A Mos-Rig; A Ukr-Pol; A Gal (S) A Brl; A Brl (S) A Mun; A Mun (H); A Swi (S) A Mun; A Pie (S) A Swi;

DFF (Continued) --

A Tyo (S) A Mun; A Vie-Boh; A Tri-Ven; F Tus (S) A Pie; F Rom (S) F Tus; F Nap-Apu.
GER (St.Cyr) -- A Bur-Gas; A Ruh-Mun; A Brm (S) A Ruh-Mun; A Ber (S) A Ruh-Mun; F
Bal-Den; A Pru (S) A Ruh-Mun; F NtS-EnC; F Bot (S) F Rig; F StP(SC) (S) F Rig;
F Rig (S) F StP(SC).

IBERIA (Bounds?) -- A Bar (U) (D (Cas, Mad, o.b.)); A Mar (U); A Gas (U); A Brt
(U) (D (Par, o.b.)); F Por (U) (A); F Leo (U).

TUR (Miller) -- A Cau-Arm; A Sib-Tur; A Con (H); F Gre-Aeg; F Can-Ion; F Tyn-Lyo;
F Lyo-Bar; F WMe-Mid; F Val (S) F Lyo-Bar; F Svl(WC) (S) F Mid-Por; F Mid-Por;
F Mor (S) F WMe-Mid.

UK (Schelz) -- F Arc (S) GER F StP(SC); F Trm (S) GER F StP(SC); F Nat-Mid; A Lon-
Brt; F Pic (S) A Lon-Brt; F EnC (C) A Lon-Brt; F Iri (S) F Nat-Mid.

Propaganda --

London -- All the Lackeys of World: Your actions are only supporting Austria
to victory, while in the game of Diplomacy you are supposed to be trying to win
yourselves. This, may I remind you, is not a game of honor, but of deceit and
backstabbing. A moment of silence for our hero Neville.

Deadline for SUMMER, 1912 retreats (IBE: A Bar; A Brt) and F'12 moves --
Noon, Tues., Jan. 27.

S U P E R C A L I F R A G I L I S T I C E X P I A L I D O C I O U S

Issue Number 32 ----- Postal Diplomacy Games SAA, SEE ----- Ochlocracy!!

SAA (Game of Anarchy I) -- E.D.I., OTTOMAN EMPIRE TIGHTEN VISE ON REST OF EUROPE:
PAPAL STATES, FOURTH REICH HIT HARD!

WINTER, 1910 Build (Special) -- ELECTORAL DISTRICT OF IDE (St.Cyr): (B) A Edi.
SPRING, 1911 moves --

BREST (Linden) -- A Mar-Gas; F Spa(SC)-WMe; A Por-Spa; F Tun (H).

E.D.I. (St.Cyr) -- F Fin (H); F Bal-Kie; A Den (S) F Bal-Kie; F Hol (S) F Bal-Kie;
A Bur-Ruh; F NtS (C) A Edi-Nwy; A Bre-Par; F EnC-Mid; F StP(NC)-Bar; A Edi-Nwy.

PARIS (Boskey) -- A Gas-Par.

PAPAL STATES (Kuch) -- A Vie-Bud; A Tri (S) A Vie-Bud; A Ven-Rom; F Adr (S) A Tri.

RUSSIA (J.Johnson) -- A Bud (S) TOE A Ser; A Lvn-Mos; A Ukr (S) A Lvn-Mos (A Ukr
D (Gal, War, o.b.)).

THE FOURTH REICH (Naus) -- A Mun (S) A Kie; A Kie (S) A Mun (A Kie D (Ber, o.b.)).

THE OTTOMAN EMPIRE (Reiter) -- A Sev-Ukr; A Rum (S) A Sev-Ukr; A Ser (S) RUS A Bud;
F Ion-Nap; F Aeg-Ion; F Alb (S) F Aeg-Ion; F Rom (S) F Ion-Nap.

Deadline for SUM'11 retreats (RUS: A Ukr; TFR: A Kie) and F'11 moves --
Noon, Tues., Jan. 27.

SEE (Game of Anarchy III) -- COUPS IN NAP/STP AND SER/SPA! NAP/STP AND EDI/MOS
ELIMINATED! AUSTRIA CONTINUES TO BLOAT!

The Players -- George Schelz has taken over play of SERBIA/SPAIN from Dan
Brannan, as well as play of NAPLES/ST. PETERSBURG (from Cole Harrison).

SUMMER, 1906 retreats -- NAP/STP (Schelz): (E) Retreating FF Apu; AA Rom (R)
Nap; (E) Retreating F Rom; TURKEY (Pournelle): FFF Tyn fights to the death.

FALL, 1906 moves --

AUSTRIA (Alderson) -- A Pru (S) AAA Gal-War; A Sil (S) AAA Gal-War; AAA Boh-Gal;
AAA Gal-War; AAA Rum-Sev; AAA Ser-Rum; AAA Rom-Nap; FFF Apu (S) AAA Rom-Nap;
AAA Tus-Rom; AAA Ven (S) AAA Tus-Rom.

BUL/LVP (Castora) -- A Cly-Lvp; A Cly-Edi; F Lvp (H).

DEN/MAR (Hill) -- F NtS-Ska; FF Bel (H); A Spa-Por; A Spa (H); F Naf (H); FFF Tyn
(H).

EDI/MOS (Schelz) -- A Edi (H) (A).

FRANCE (Nurse) -- AAA Par (H); AAA Mar (H); FFF Bre (H); A Fin-StP; AAA Lvn (S)

A Fin-StP (support by two A's cut; spt. by 3rd A good).

LON-VIE (Kanner) -- A/F Hol-NtS; A/F Kie-Hel; F Hel-Den; A Hol (H).

SEE (Continued) --

- NAP/STP (Schelz) -- AA Nap-Rom (A); F Nap (S) AA Nap-Rom (F Nap (A)).
- NWY/VEN (Buchman) -- F Bal-Ber; F Den-Kie; FF Nat-Nwg; F Nwg (S) BUL/LVP A Cly-Edi; FF Yor (S) BUL/LVP A Cly-Edi; FF NtS-Ska.
- SER/SPA (Schelz) -- AA War-Lvn (note only one A in War) (A War D (Ukr, Mos, o.b.)); A Mos (S) AA War-Lvn; A Mos (U).
- TUN/WAR (McDaniel) -- FFF Ion (H).
- TURKEY (Pournelle) -- FFF Con-Bla; A Ank-Arm; FF Aeg (H); FFF EMe (H) (note this was erroneously typed as FF EMe in HPBA-10).

Propaganda --

Naples, Edinburgh, Moscow, and Warsaw -- In a joint declaration, the three great powers of the modern world declared their need for "HELP!".

Supply Centers held at end of AUT'06 (retreat does not affect count) --

- AUSTRIA -- Gre, Rum, Ser, Bud, Tri, Vie, Ven, Ber, Mun, Sev, War, Nap, Rom (may build 9 units; only 26 on bd., but only 3 open home s.ctrs.) (12/36)
- BUL/LVP -- Lvp, Edi (may build three units). (2/6)
- DEN/MAR -- Por, Spa, Bel (stands pat). (3/9)
- EDI/MOS -- ~~Edi~~ (stands pat; no units on board). (0)
- FRANCE -- StP, Nwy, Bre, Mar, Par (stands pat; only 13 on bd., but no open home s.ctrs.). (5/15)
- LON/VIE -- Hol, Kie, Den (stands pat). (2/6)
- NAP/STP -- ~~Nap, Rom~~ (stands pat; no units on board). (0)
- NWY/VEN -- Swe, Den, Lon, Ber, Kie (may build three units). (4/12)
- SER/SPA -- Mos, Ser, War (stands pat; only 3 units on board). (1/3)
- TUN/WAR -- Tun (stands pat). (1/3)
- TURKEY -- Ank, Con, Smy, Bul (may build three units; only 9 on board). (4/12)

Deadline for A'06 retreat (S/S: A War) & W'06 builds -- Noon, Tues., Jan.27.

C H A O S

Issue Number 8 -- Postal Diplomacy Game SBB - - - - - Hellzapoppin!

SBB (Hyperspace II, #2) -- AUSTRIA-HUNGARY, RUSSIA BIG GAINERS AS ENGLAND IS SHATTERED, FRANCE & GERMANY SENT REELING!

SUMMER, 1908 retreat -- FRA (Gemignani): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Mar.

FALL, 1908 moves --

- A-H (Prosnitz) -- A Par (H); F Tri (H); A Wal-Yor; A Lon (S) A Wal-Yor; A Lvp-Edi; A Gal (S) (thru hs) A Lvp-Edi; A Ven (S) (thru hs) ITA F Mar; A Vie-Tyo; A Bud-Ser; A Rum-Sev; A Bul-Rum; (L) Bul(59a,b) & Con(58); (S) Kie(43) & Par(33).
- ENG (Tretick) -- A Gas (S) RUS A Kie-Par via hs (RUS A Kie NSO); A Sil-Mun; A Mun-Bur; F Nwg-Edi; A Yor (S) F Nwg-Edi (A Yor (A)); (L) Den(44)-Lon(24); (S) Gal(64) & Edi(20).
- FRA (Gemignani) -- A Bre-Bur (impossible); A Mar (S) Pie (no A Mar, no unit in Pie).
- GER (Reiter) -- No units on board.
- ITA (Schelz) -- F Mar (S) F Mid-Spa; F Rom (H); F Mid-Spa (coast not specified); (L) Mar(30) & Rom(73); (S) Spa(29a,b) & Gas(31).
- RUS (St.Cyr) -- A Mos-War; A Sev-Ukr; A Ber (S) A Kie-Mun; A Kie-Mun; A Nwy (H); F Den-Kie; (L) Mos(49) & Sev (53); (S) Tun(26) & Hyperspace (XX).

Supply Centers held at end of F'08 (no AUTUMN retreats) --

- A-H -- Con, Bul, Gre, Rum, Ser, Bud, Tri, Vie, Ven, Lvp, Lon, Sev, Par, Edi (may build 2 units; only 2 open home supply centers). (14)
- ENG -- ~~War, Nwy, Kon, Spa, Mun, Edi~~ (remove 3 units; only 4 on board). (1)
- FRA -- Bre, Mar, Par (stands pat; only 1 unit on board). (1)
- GER -- Bel, Ber (stands pat; no units on board, but no open home s.ctrs.). (1)
- ITA -- Nap, Tun, Por, Rom, Mar (may build 1 unit; only 1 open home s.ctr.). (5)
- RUS -- Ank, Smy, Mos, StP, Ser, Swe, Hol, Kie, Den, War, Nwy, Ber, Mun (may build 2 units; only 6 on board, but only 2 open home s.ctrs.). (12)

Propaganda (from France) deferred to HPBA #12 (no room).

Deadline for W'08 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., Jan. 27.
